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ADDENDUM NO. 1:  RFP #GS-26-PRMP 

 

2026 CITY OF CORTEZ PARKS & RECREATION MASTER PLAN 

 
 

 

The following changes, additions, and/or modifications have been made to the Contract Documents and 

Specifications, and/or the plans, and shall be reflected in the Contractor’s bid for the work.  

  

This Addendum No. 1 shall be acknowledged in the submitted proposal package. 

 

This Addendum No. 1 consists of the following:   

• Questions & Answers #1 - #34 (6 pages) 

 

 

Questions & Answers: 

 

1. What is driving the timeline? Is there flexibility to suggest alternatives? 

a. The timeline is an estimate; likely a bit expedited due to the Department/community’s 

longstanding and overdue need for this plan. There is flexibility to suggest alternatives, and it is 

requested in the RFP that firms share their thoughts on the feasibility of the presented timeline 

and share their professional recommendation for any adjustments to the presented timeline (see 

Appendix A, Project Management Approach, Item 3a). 

2. To meet accessibility requirements, does the City desire two versions – one that meets accessibility and 

one more illustrative and graphic? 

a. There should exist only one version and it shall be entirely accessible. The plan can still be 

illustrative and graphic while also being entirely accessible, provided it meets the accessibility 

requirements established by Colorado House Bill 21-1110 and the minimum standards of 

accessibility detailed in the Web Content Accessibility Guidelines (WCAG) 2.1 AA, W3C. These 

minimum standards can be accessed here: Web Content Accessibility Guidelines (WCAG) 2.1. 

3. What level of inventory does the City have for each of the inventory categories (deferred maintenance 

lists, GIS, etc.)? 

a. The Department has a baseline understanding of deferred maintenance and GIS, along with 

existing infrastructure, programs, and events. The City has a fledgling asset management 

program (Open Gov) that is slowly formalizing this inventory; it primarily exists through 

informal means across various documents and director/supervisor knowledge. Inventory will be a 

discussion in the initial planning stage with the selected firm (see scope item for Internal 

Assessment and Project Administration).  
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4. For the Recreation Center analysis, can we assume the intent is to only inventory and assess the 

programs at those locations and not to assess the physical structure and individual room/space 

configurations? 

a. The Recreation Center will require all aspect of the scope, to include community engagement, 

resource and data collection, issue identification, and implementation. The intent of the Master 

Plan is to complete the entire scope for all inventory categories, though some categories will 

naturally require more work. We need a comprehensive analysis of our entire Department and 

are open to what your firm recommends is the best way to achieve this goal. 

5. As a specialized facility, what level of analysis is needed for the Golf Course? 

a. The answer to this question is similar to that of question four. We would expect all scope items 

to be addressed at the golf course, however, we are eager to hear what is recommended as both 

feasible and beneficial. 

6. How many meetings with the Parks, Recreation, & Forestry Board and City Council do you envision 

throughout the process and what is the expectation for virtual vs. in person presentations? 

a. We anticipate a minimum of four presentations (two for each group) throughout this process. 

Please share what you recommend given what has worked best in the past with similar Master 

Plan projects. As for virtual vs. in person presentations, it is preferred that the presentations be 

done in person, while virtual options are available should they be needed. 

7. To tailor the proposal can you provide the weight for each category in the Evaluation of Qualifications 

Form? 

a. The following weights will be applied to the scope items detailed in Appendix A: Evaluation of 

Qualifications Form (Total Possible Points = 40 Points out of 100). 

i. Technical Approach: Weight = 5 

ii. Experience: Weight = 5 

iii. Project Management Approach: Weight = 3 

iv. Staffing Plan: Weight = 2 

v. Job Standards: Weight = 1 

vi. Local Presence: Weight = 2 

8. Under Scope Item B, Phase 3, it lists a request for a Department-wide financial analysis to be used in 

community education and engagement activities. Is the team expected to conduct this financial analysis 

or will staff provide? 

a. As with most items in this scope, we are open to your firm’s recommendation. The Department 

has completed a general financial analysis (10-year projection of needs) that can serve as a 

baseline and can then be updated with the Master Plan findings. 

b. The goal of this financial analysis will be to estimate how much the 10-year Master Plan 

(Department needs and a careful selection of desired improvements) will cost to generate 

transparent community discussions of how these needs will then be paid for and addressed. 
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9. Under Scope Item E there are several requested plans for different Parks and Recreation facilities, 

including trails. Would this primarily focus on paved multi-use trails, or is the expectation to evaluate 

unpaved open space trails as well? 

a. The community has repeatedly highlighted a desire for a better trail system. A desired outcome 

of this Master Plan is to present an outline of how a community trails network may be 

implemented in future years. Trail needs for this Master Plan will likely include: 

i. Community-wide trail plan – mix of paved and un-paved. 

ii. A non-intensive review of our current trail systems. The expectation would be to give 

quick feedback on recommendations and considerations. 

iii. Possibly a quick review of how City trails may connect to regional opportunities. For 

example, connecting Denny Lake Park to Mesa Verde using the Trails to Mesa Verde 

Path. 

10. How specific are the expected deliverables for the Conquistador Golf Course Plan? Is evaluation and 

recommendations for supporting infrastructure sufficient or is staff looking for something akin to a 

master plan? 

a. The golf course will require the same scope components as all other Parks and Recreation 

inventory categories, to include community engagement, resource and data collection, issue 

identification, and implementation. The previous plan is very outdated (10+ years); thus, 

something akin to a Master Plan is the desired result. 

11. Approximately how many in-person public engagement meetings or events does the City anticipate as a 

minimum expectation? 

a. A minimum expectation is the three key phases of engagement (see 2.3.4 Scope Item B, part vii): 

Phase 1 during the inventory stage; Phase 2 after assessment and issue identification; and Phase 

3 during the action plan. Please provide your recommendation on how to best address public 

engagement during these phases. The vision of this project is to reflect the community’s needs. 

12. Does the City expect facility condition assessments to include engineering/architectural-level 

evaluations, or planning-level observations and prioritization? 

a. This is a planning-level request – a rough order of magnitude of cost will be beneficial. 

13. Is it necessary to provide any environmental or cultural surveys as part of the scope? 

a. There are not any specific requirements for these types of surveys in Colorado Parks Master 

Plans. With that said, these types of surveys might be beneficial should the plan identify new 

areas for development of parks, if there are any archeological sites that have not already been 

surveyed, or if they are believed to be beneficial for pursuing grant monies. 

14. Are translation services (Spanish or other languages) expected to be provided by the consultant during 

community engagement? 

a. While not expected, it would be appreciated. Cortez and its surrounding region are diverse, with 

approximately 30% of Cortez’s 9,000+ residents identifying as a non-White racial group. Please 

propose strategies you would recommend, or have found useful in the past, to address diverse 

cultural and language needs. 
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15. Will you clarify what other items (not including insurance and bonds) are considered supporting 

documents that will not count towards the 30-page limit? 

a. The 30-page limit should address the following:  

▪ General Approach (Sec. 2.3.2),  

▪ Scope Items (Sec. 2.3.5), and 

▪ Evaluation Criteria in Appendix A.  

Supporting documents such as insurance, bonds, the cost proposal form (Appendix C), cover 

pages, signature sheets, etc., will not be counted towards the 30-page limit. 

16. To what extent will the City be providing outreach and communications staff support, and are any 

bilingual language translation or interpretation services required? 

a. The Parks and Recreation staff may assist with outreach according to your firm’s direction. We 

expect to do outreach sessions based on materials you provide. Language translation can be 

addressed during the internal assessment and project administration stage.  Additional funding is 

not set aside for this specific need and will not be included as a part of the overall budget. 

17. Can you elaborate on the Project Marketing and Information Plan – what staff resources are available? 

a. This request relates to community engagement. The Department currently has an Events and 

Marketing Specialist and the City has a Public Information Officer that will want to push out 

information you provide. The specific request is to: 

i. Detail how information will be displayed to the public and how Department City-wide 

marketing staff will be involved. For example: 1. Project website; 2. Social media; 3. 

Project newsletter. Propose how to make the community feel heard, while not identifying 

everything as a priority in future action planning. 

18. Do you require a new third-party website for this project or will you use the City of Cortez web 

platform? 

a. We expect to embed project information within the City’s existing website. 

19. For social media and quarterly newsletters, do you only need content, or do you need graphic support 

and project branding material as well? 

a. Submitting complete content (‘post-ready’) to our Events and Marketing Specialist is ideal. This 

includes content, graphic support, and project branding material as necessary/required. 

20. Do you have a list with contact information of partners and agencies that we can utilize for the Partner 

Engagement Plan? 

a. Yes, this can be provided during the internal assessment and project administration phase. 

21. Is the referenced survey expected to be a statistically valid survey? 

a. Yes. 

22. Does the golf course have an up-to-date operations and capital asset program in place? 

a. A financial analysis was recently completed for the golf course that includes anticipated 

operational and capital needs for the next 20 years. However, insights/adjustments on operation 

and capital needs will be expected.  
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23. Does the City have topographical, boundary, easement, and utility location data for the possible future 

project sites that may be considered for development and for the two undeveloped sites? 

a. Information on these sites may be found in our GIS database including the topographical (1-foot 

contours), boundary (parcel), and utility information. Specific easement information, beyond that 

of public right-of-way, may have to be discovered through Montezuma County records. 

24. Please clarify the “scenarios for renovation plans based on certain plans for revenue.” Is this specific 

to recreation facilities, or does it include other built structures (golf services)? How many total plan 

areas or structures are included? 

a. This request specifically refers to community engagement portion of the action plan. Scenarios 

are expected to include general estimates that cover all inventory categories (see 2.3.3 ‘scope 

introduction’) and general revenue options. The intent is to bridge Master Plan findings with 

fiscal reality for residents. 

b. Revenue scenarios (funding mechanisms) may differ between divisions. The Recreation Center 

is currently an enterprise fund, while all other facilities (to include golf) are funded by the City’s 

general fund. 

25. Please clarify your expectations for the order of magnitude cost estimates for all inventory categories 

listed. What assumptions will be in place to help us establish cost estimates? 

a. There are no assumptions currently in place. This item requests an estimate on probable costs for 

needs that arise from the Master Plan process, which will then be prioritized by the community. 

26. Possible Add-Ons: Is additional funding available to address these tasks? Would it be possible to 

postpone these tasks later once the plan process gets further along?  If so, could we hold off on 

preparing a fee proposal for these tasks? 

a. Additional funding is not currently allocated. While it is possible to postpone these tasks, please 

offer an initial summary of what your firm may be able to tackle, in what manner, and a general 

estimate for these services for the purposes of this RFP. 

27. How does the City envision addressing long-term financial sustainability, cost of service, lifecycle 

reinvestment, and subsidy allocation, prior to making decisions about system expansion or 

enhancement? 

a. The Department currently receives funding from a mixture of local tax revenue and some lottery 

proceeds. Grants may also be an option, though they will need to be selected carefully, 

prioritized according to community need and staff capacity. 

28. Would the City be open to incorporating a cost-of-service analysis and a financial sustainability 

framework into the planning process to ensure recommendations align with fiscal capacity and long-

term obligations. 

a. Yes. 

29. Are the results from the Semi-Annual Survey available to proposers? 

a. The results of this survey will be made available to the selected firm. 

30. Section 4 (Proposal Submission) states that two hard copies and one electronic copy on a USB drive are 

required. Would the City consider accepting fully digital submissions via email in lieu of hard copies? 

a. Please provide your submission as hard copies, including the electronic copy via USB drive. No 

email submissions will be accepted. 
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31. Section 3.3.4.5 outlines job standards related to personnel procurement, Colorado workforce 

employment, training programs, and employee benefits. Could you please clarify the City’s intent with 

this criterion, specifically, is this section primarily intended to evaluate alignment with State Public 

Works requirements and are there particular policies, certifications, or documentation the City is 

seeking beyond a narrative description? 

a. The primary purpose of Section 3.3.4.5 is intended to align with State requirements. The City is 

solely seeking a narrative description addressing the specific criteria as listed in the section.  

32. Item 3.3.4.3.2. In the RFP states providing “an itemized project cost.” Are you looking for a lump sum 

amount per task or would you also like us to provide the estimated hours per person per task? 

a. We are looking for a lump sum amount per task or scope item. Specifics such as hours per 

person per task is too granular and too hard to accurately compare from proposal to proposal. 

33. Are Appendix C1, Appendix D: Performance Bond, Appendix E: Payment Bond, and Appendix F: Bid 

Bond required? 

a. After reviewing the bonding for this project, it has been determined that the Bid Bond will be 

waived.  Vendors need to understand that if their proposal is accepted, the vendor must furnish a 

Performance Bond, Payment Bond, Insurance Policy, and Certificates of Insurance within ten 

days from the date of the Notice of Award. Contract execution will proceed after the 

aforementioned has been provided. 

34. What is the budget for this Master Planning initiative? 

a. To maintain a fair and competitive procurement process, we will not be disclosing the budget 

value of the project at this time. Withholding this information ensures that all bidders develop 

proposals based on their most accurate and cost-effective solutions rather than aligning 

submissions to a predetermined figure. It shall be mentioned that this planning effort will be a 

multi-year commitment by the City and additional funds will have to be budgeted for FY2027. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

END ADDENDUM NO. 1 

 

 

Bid Due Date and Time Remain the Same:  

Wednesday, March 25, 2026, at 3:00 PM MDT 


